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☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Parker Oswald 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 
commerce; to provide exemptions; and to provide for a transfer 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-6 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Gavels in and reconvenes the committee with a 
committee quorum present.  
 
(00:40) Holly Holt: Interim Director of the Workforce Development Division, introduces self 
and begins presentation of attachment 1 (recording number 30576 1/9/19 page 90). 
 
(4:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you work with Ms. Baesler at all? 
 
Ms. Holt: We work very closely with Career and Technical Education (CTE), DPI and Job 
Service. Continues to present. 
 
(9:20) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: We only received 1 set of results, why 
did we not get the performance reviews from the tribal college grants? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: It is disappointing to only have 1 out of 4 reports from these 
institutes. Can we get a breakdown? 
 
(11:00) Ms. Holt: There are results in attachment 1 from recording 30576 1/9/19 that is 
broken down by school by graduation rates. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: I would like to see a breakdown of this so we can see how our 
funding helps and if it is necessary. 
 
(16:45) Ms. Holt: Begins to talk about the Main Street Initiative. 

 
(18:50) Representative Mike Nathe: How much has that been funded through the 
Commerce Discretionary Fund? 
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Ms. Holt: I could provide you a better breakdown. 
 
Ms. Holt: Introduces Innovate ND grant program and continues presenting. 
 
(21:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: How do we rank in businesses that are 
still in business after they start up? 
 
Ms. Holt: We see a higher dropout rate in phase 1. Once they pass phase 1, they generally 
stay in until the end and almost all of them are still in business years later. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How do we compare percentage wise? 
 
(22:15) Ms. Holt: We are high, but I do not have that exact figure off the top of my head.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So the $20K is where some of the funds are 
going? 
 
Ms. Holt: Yes. 
 
(24:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: We will be looking at all of these budgets 
and how they correlate to each other and continue to consolidate them so we do not 
duplicate. We will be having you back on this issue. 
 
(25:10) Ms. Holt: I am happy to come back and provide those figures. Thanks the committee 
and introduces the next guest. 
 
(25:45) David Farnsworth: Great River Energy and Chair of the North Dakota Workforce 
Development Council. Hands out attachment, proposes support for HB 1018 and introduces 
self to committee. Begins to present attachment 1.  
 
(33:00) Mr. Farnsworth: References and gives an overview of the North Dakota Workforce 
Development Council Summary Report found in attachment 1.  
 
(37:50) Mr. Farnsworth: Concludes testimony and asks committee for any questions. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Asks how much state funding went into this? 
 
Mr. Farnsworth: I do not know that figure, but the cost was fairly low. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It was $0 and all raised locally. 
 
(39:15) Mr. Farnsworth: Expresses the importance of the career academies and says the 
results are very positive and career academies put technical education in the forefront out of 
the back alleys of schools who do not always promote this type of education.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: There are no back alleys in schools related to career and 
technical education. Our students enrolled in these courses have a higher GPA than the rest 
of the student body.  
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Mr. Farnsworth: I am addressing a stereotype that people who could not make it into a four-
year university, they were encouraged to enter a trade, which was a lower paying 
professional area at the time. 
 
(41:30) Representative Mike Nathe: Is the state doing a good enough job of promoting this 
technical education?  
 
(42:00) Mr. Farnsworth: It is very much a mixed bag, us in the energy sector go around the 
state promoting these careers, but there are a number of industries that are not promoting 
these jobs. I believe it is the parents that are tougher to crack than the kids.  
 
(43:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Addresses committee and tells the 
public they can make comments towards the end. 
 
(43:40) John Schneider: Director of Division of Economic Development and Finance, 
introduces self to the committee and begins to present from attachment 1 (recording # 30576 
1/9/19 page. 142).  
 
(47:40) Mr. Schneider: Outlines the Agricultural Products Utilization Commission (APUC) 
and the North Dakota Development Fund.  
 
(49:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: Asks how the general fund relates to 
APUC and state mill and elevators? 
 
Mr. Schneider: It received no general funds. This reflects the actual amount and does 
actually affect Advanced Procurement for Universities and Colleges (APUC). We have no 
carry over heading into the new biennium and $600,000 would be about 2 funding sessions 
in the next 4 years.  
 
(52:20) Mr. Schneider: Continues presenting  
 
(56:00) Mr. Schneider: Thanks the committee and asks to receive any questions. 
 
(57:05) James Leiman: Senior Manager for Strategy and Research, introduces self to 
committee and begins presenting from attachment 1 (recording # 30576 1/9/19 page 213).  
 
(1:01:50) Representative Mike Nathe: On the $30M, how long will that take to build this 
Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS)? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Between 2-4 years. Returns to presenting. 
 
(1:05:30) Mr. Leiman: Continues to present and outlines the Strategic Initiatives.  

 
(1:08:30) Nicholas Flom: Executive Director of the Northern Plains Unmanned Aircraft 
Systems Test Site. Introduces self to committee and begins presenting from attachment 1 
(recording # 30576 1/9/19 page 265).  
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(1:14:00) Mr. Flom: Explains the budget and past appropriations that BVLOS has received. 
 
(1:18:45) Mr. Flom: Expresses full support for HB 1018 for the Governor’s proposal. Thanks 
committee and asks for questions. 
 
(1:19:40) Thomas Swoyer Jr.: President of Grand Sky Development Company. Introduces 
self and begins presenting Grand Sky funding in attachment 1 (from recording #30576 1/9/19 
page 273).  
 
(1:23:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: If you get to $3M you will put more 
concrete down and that will attract more investment? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: Yes, it will be used to build more and it will attract more investment. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: How will the money proposed by the Governor affect you? 
 
(1:24:45) Mr. Swoyer: The United States Air Force is a pivotal partner and we have helped 
them utilize an important radar system in Grand Forks. We are the only civilians with access 
to a military radar in the whole United States. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: The ability of this system in place allows us to add jobs, expand our prototypes 
and provisions to work with the military and help create even more jobs for Grand Sky as well 
as other industries across the state.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Will this increase the capacity to get data in and out of the 
communities? 
 
(1:26:20) Mr. Swoyer: It will help us increase the data moving capacity. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is the $3M extra apart of the $30M? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: No, it is separate from the proposed $30M, so an extra $3M for the funding of 
Grand Sky. 
 
(1:27:50) Simon Wilson: Executive Director of the North Dakota Trade Office (NDTO). 
Introduces self to committee and begins presenting from attachment 1 (recoding #30576 
1/9/19 page 284).  
 
(1:31:35) Mr. Wilson: Concludes testimony and asks for questions. 
 
(1:32:00) David Martin: State Director of the North Dakota Small Business Development 
Centers and the North Dakota Procurement Technical Assistance Centers. introduces self 
and begins an overview of attachment 2.  
 
(1:36:20) Greg Tehven: Executive Director of Emerging Prairie. Introduces self and begins 
presenting from attachment 1 (recording #30576 1/9/19 page 298).  
 
(1:39:50) Mr. Tehven: Thanks committee and asks for any questions.  
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(1:40:20) Deidre Hillman: Program Director of the North Dakota Women’s Business Center 
(NDWBC). Introduces self and asks committee to save testimony from attachment, recording 
#305476 1/9/19 page 301, for the sake of time at a later date.  
 
(1:42:10) Tony Richards: President and CEO of Impact Dakota. Asks to also return at a 
later date. Written testimony in attachment 1 from recording 30576 1/9/19 page 319, will be 
presented at a later date to the committee due to time constraints.  
 
(1:43:00) Charley Johnson: President and CEO of the Fargo-Moorhead Convention & 
visitors Bureau. Introduces self as a fill in for Bill Shalhoob’s Travel Alliance Partnership 
testimony. Presents from attachment 1 (recording #30576 page 330) 
 
(1:47:10) Mr. Johnson: Announces support for HB 1018.  
 
(1:48:30) Don Shilling: Workforce Development. Introduces self and begins presenting 
attachment 1 recording #30576. Asks to return at a later date for more testimony.  
 
(1:52:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: We will come back and revisit this 
report at a later report. Around January 21st or 22nd.  
 
Mr. Shilling: Thanks the committee and asks for any questions. 
 
(1:54:10) Ellen Huber: President of Economic Development Association of North Dakota. 
Introduces self and begins presenting from attachment 1 (recording #30576 page 324). 
 
(1:58:15) Ms. Huber: We encourage your support of HB 1018 and thanks the committee. 
 
(1:58:45) Lorraine Davis: Executive Director of the Native American Development Center. 
Passes out and begins presenting attachment 3 to committee.  
 
(2:01:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: Have you asked the Agriculture 
Commissioner or Pride of Dakota? 
 
Ms. Davis: No I have not, but I will. Thanks committee and ends testimony.  
 
(2:02:00) Randy Hatzenbuhler: Introduces self to committee, passes out attachment 4 and 
proposes support in favor of HB 1018.  
 
Mr. Hatzenbuhler: Responds to Representative Mike Nathe’s question asking if the 
Presidential Library will bring a higher influx of population to Medora; every investment that 
has been made in Medora has increased the popularity and I would like to return at a later 
date for a more detailed testimony.  
 
(2:03:00) Delore Zimmerman: Introduces self to committee and hands out attachment 5. 
Proposes support in favor of HB 1018. 
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(2:06:00) Bruce Pitts: Introduces self to the committee and proposes support in favor of HB 
1018 and the funding for the Presidential Library. 
 
(2:08:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there anyone in opposition of HB 
1018? No objectors.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes meeting.   
 
Attachment 6 was passed out but not presented.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 
commerce; to provide exemptions; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens meeting and attendance is taken. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Addresses the audience about the commerce 
bill HB 1018. Informs the audience that the representatives will be on the floor until 2:15 pm 
this afternoon and the afternoon will have to begin around 2:25 pm.  
 
(2:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are going to talk about the Commerce 
budget and not the Teddy Roosevelt library. We want to hammer out the details of the budget 
and work with the $30M in the Governor’s recommended budget.  
 
(3:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: This is a big chunk of money and we may 
not have people at random come up, but we have a lot of questions and want to breakdown 
what we will get for the $30M. 
 
(4:10) James Leiman: Director for the ND Department of Commerce. You have $30M for 
beyond visual line of sight (BVLOS), $3M for Grand Sky and $3M for the test site. 
 
Mr. Leiman: BVLOS is pivotal for the future of unmanned aircraft systems. For $30M you 
would basically be buying networks in Grand Forks, Fargo, Minot, Bismarck Watford City and 
Finley. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Why Finley? 
 
Mr. Leiman: It is a ground radar. We want to create cooperative coverage for the entire state. 
With airplanes you have the ability for transponders and sensors throughout the country. If a 
plane crashes, they know exactly where it is. 
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(7:30) Mr. Leiman: In essence, you are buying the coverage to expand the network that is 
currently between Grand Forks and Fargo. Our next area of focus would be the oil fields. 
 
Mr. Leiman: I cannot look at you today and tell you the exact cost for some of these systems. 
Second, we looked at the state of New York who also uses $30M, and third we looked at 
what Harris did. 
 
Mr. Leiman: Since you do have several companies in the country that do this and it is not 
regulated by the FAA (Federal Aviation Administration) or FCC (Federal Communications 
Commission), making it kind of tricky. 
 
(10:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: So are you working at all with existing 
radar that is currently Government or military controlled? Do you plan to coordinate with them 
at all? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Chances are we will not tie into the radar system that is controlled by NORAD 
(North American Aerospace Defense Command). Grand Sky is unique because we are 
untapped in the public infrastructure area.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Weather modification, we have radar down in 
Bowman for weather modification. I do not think it is used to its fullest extent, have you 
thought about that? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Before we spend any money, our first intent is to go hire a subject matter expert. 
We have a great team that involves military expertise and partnerships, but we are missing 
a subject matter expert that we would like to fill. 
 
(14:00) Mr. Leiman: We do not want to create a system that cannot be used throughout the 
country. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you mean by scalability. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We want to create something that works throughout the country and not just 
here. It is like cell phone towers for T-Mobile that do not give service in ND, but do most other 
states. 
 
(15:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: You want everything to connect and 
work, you want a network? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We want to insure that people do not leave here and move jobs because we 
are 5-10 years behind. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Roughly and about are not words we like to use. I do not 
think you know how much you truly want and what it is used for. Why should the state of 
North Dakota put up this money? 
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(16:35) Mr. Leiman: We would be perfectly comfortable with $30M. We have working 
systems that you can see and the agriculture and energy programs in the state give us a 
huge advantage over New York. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We did a breakdown of the costs and the companies we have backing us agreed 
that the price points were ideal. We cannot give exact costs due to breaking ND State laws. 
 
Mr. Leiman: At Grand Sky, the average salary for employees is $70,000 and we could 
generate $1.6B with a $30M investment. 
 
(19:10) Representative Mike Nathe: What does $30M give us? We need to sell this. Will it 
attract more private sector and more Government contracts? 
 
Mr. Leiman: About 5 months ago we sought industry input and developed a statewide plan. 
We visited about 30 companies in and out of the state and asked what would bring them to 
ND. They answered that they want BVLOS and we think about this as the data supply chain.  
 
Mr. Leiman: These birds collect a lot of data and when you are hours away from the home 
base, you need to be able to access this. By 2021, this will be a $100B industry with 30% 
industry and 70% being military.  
 
Mr. Leiman: It was industry that said we need these things and we are trying to develop 
communities. We save money on pilots and we have to do things like check out the pipelines 
every two weeks and this is much easier and more accessible using this. 
 
(23:00) Representative Mike Nathe: This $30M will keep us ahead of the pack? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We are one of the top 6 and this $30M will propel us to the top. Some states 
are throwing hundreds of millions of dollars into this, but we have the advantage of open 
skies and space with agricultural needs to develop.  
 
(23:55) Mr. Leiman: The main thing is the workforce and job creation. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: What is the difference between radar and sensors? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Radar is the general coverage and sensors could be radar or problem marking. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: You mentioned T-Mobile, but Verizon rents out space for this 
type of technology.  
 
(26:15) Mr. Leiman: I have not visited with Verizon, but there is a possibility for that. There 
are 2 tiers, 55 pounds and above or 55 pounds and below. You have to integrate in the 
broader spectrums at the heavier birds, but below you can do a lot of different things. 
 
Mr. Leiman: This is also an explanation of why we need a subject matter expert. We also 
built an 8 step list of the use of taxpayer money that outlines and gives us guidance and 
performance based outlines. 
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Representative Bob Martinson: Can you get us a list of the states and the money 
breakdown they spend? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Yes, I can do that. 
 
(28:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: We have towers everywhere, but Prairie 
Public Broadcasting has towers everywhere. They use them to send television signals to 
send theirs out. Is there something so unique that these towers cannot be piggybacked.  
 
Mr. Leiman: Midcontinent can provide fast internet service in rural communities just by using 
water towers too. They do not leverage the water towers the same, but it is the sensor 
covered that send signals between the asset and the tower and be able to store this and 
transmit.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Are we too far ahead of the game here?  
 
(30:45) Mr. Leiman: We are right in the sweet spot. Last week the FAA announced that they 
want to define the environment of these programs and generate data. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We are ahead and we are not just going to throw the money at it without using 
the 8 safeguard points. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Are you going to build towers or be putting sensors on there? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We have private sector towers, Department of Transportation network of towers 
and water towers. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: The SIRN (Statewide Interoperable Radio Network) issue and 
someone had asked me if this $30M would work in conjunction.  
 
(32:35) Mr. Leiman: We will use existing infrastructure mostly. We want an open source 
infrastructure where it is opened and then closed 5 years and then reopened and it is way 
behind everything. We do not want to be relegated to what we bought in 2019. That is why 
we want to use existing infrastructure.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Will this attract other UAS (Unmanned Aircraft System) 
companies to the state in say Williston? Is there anyone waiting? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We have sent people out to the embassy networks of the world and told them 
exactly what we have planned and the great variance we have in this state. We have tied it 
into our entire production schedules on how we market our state. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We will have 20 companies that we have worked with that are ready to go and 
start these systems in a place like Tioga. North Dakota is going to be the only state where 
you can test your new products. It is tied into a broader state and national industry for 
defense. 
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(36:15) Representative Mike Nathe: Do you see the defense sector investing more into 
this? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Yes, we already have contracts and have worked closely with a few Department 
of Defense groups. 
 
Mr. Leiman: By having that pipeline to the defense agency, we are working with the Navy, 
air force and National Guard to work on their technology. It will highlight UAS and we are 
going full throttle on the defense side. 
 
(38:00) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: I still do not hear an answer. We 
need to know the breakdowns of what we would get from $30M, $20M or even $10M. 
Obviously the private industry is putting in money, so we need to know these answers. 
 
Mr. Leiman: One thing I have not even discussed is public safety. One thing we realized was 
search and rescue where it took us 24 hours to get a drone up and running. Without BVLOS, 
you cannot investigate the accident hundreds of miles away quickly without a physical 
presence.  
 
Mr. Leiman: It creates a safety net for rural communities. Think about the efficiencies of 
checking bridges and dams with a drone instead of a long drive followed by potentially unsafe 
detection technics. 
 
(41:30) Mr. Leiman: The good news is there is a proper market solution. I do not really have 
a breakdown of what we could get for $10M or $20M. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Are you saying all or none? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We are not saying all or none, but to develop the full benefits, we need the 
$30M. 
 
(42:30) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: At what point in time do we transfer 
the state picking up this expense to the people? 
 
(43:00) Mr. Leiman: Think of it as any industry like roads or bridges, it is an investment we 
are leveraging with infrastructure and public benefits. You save money as a tax payer 
because of an increase government infrastructure that is usable for everyone.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: You developed a good background with contacts and 
information and now you will get a specialist to come in, which is a cost. How do you 
sequence these costs and what happens if there is a red light? If you could help us with the 
sequencing of paying money to get special help and where it goes from there. 
 
(46:10) Mr. Leiman: I will give you two versions here. Our intent for Commerce, the 
Department of Transportation and FCC is to work together. We need to work with our federal 
government partners. We want to develop a proposal for the expert that would design and 
outline the regulatory guidelines. 
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Mr. Leiman: We will draft the request for proposal and by fall we can send out the contract. 
I hate to sound elusive with constraints on acquisition law. By winter after we have awarded 
this contract, we start with the deployment of this system.  
 
Mr. Leiman: For the first couple years, that subject matter expert would be used to define 
use cases. What folks look at is what are use cases? BVLOS is a use case, flight operations 
over people. Flying a drone over people is not legal and certain cases to work with the FCC. 
 
(49:45) Mr. Leiman: Next, you get into the design phase and the FAA would have to okay it. 
We get to design the national standards, which is unique to this state only. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We want to work where things can be fixed at a cheap price and develop the 
industry. From there we would have a baseline integration for outside sources to work. 
 
(51:15) Mr. Leiman: It takes 10-12 years for airplane companies to go through regulation 
control and we would have people here do that and designing all of these projects. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We all know how slow the Government works, 
so you kind of said that you have to develop all of this and the FAA has to sign off on it. So if 
we gave you $10M and called that phase 1, and if you get the FCC or FAA okay, would that 
work? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We have a special relationship with the Department of Transportation. 
 
(54:00) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Who owns it? 
 
Mr. Leiman: The state of ND would own it. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The state of ND owns what? We would not own 
towers or the radar/sensors, so what are we going to own? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We do own radars. We will have to build a national operation center. 
 
Mr. Leiman: There will be an air traffic control component of this $30M and that would be 
owned by the state as well as the sensors and radars. 
 
(56:15) Representative Mike Schatz: I am looking at this and how do we buy these drones 
for personal use? 
 
Mr. Leiman: They do exist, but it is defining and creating the system of technology to use 
them long range for a multitude of uses. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Will this $30M put us on the road to do that? 
 
Mr. Leiman: This is precisely the infrastructure we would be buying.  
 
(58:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: When it leaves one area it gets picked 
up by another. You could almost do an ambulance like thing.  
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Representative Mike Nathe: There will be exhibits in the great hall outlining the use of 
drones. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I think we have our heads around these 
concepts, but still want a deeper breakdown of the funds used and where they would go.  
 
(1:01:00) Representative Mike Nathe: I think Nicholas Flom would be perfect. 
 
(1:01:30) Nicholas Flom: I have questions and answers for you. 
 
Mr. Flom: The air ambulance is being tested, but it is not there yet. There is a company out 
of Nevada testing drones with defibrillators on board for rural communities. 
 
Mr. Flom: Urban air mobility is the flying car concept. This test site went from a statewide to 
a nationwide testing site where Silicon Valley companies have come to test and work on their 
technology.  
 
(1:04:15) Mr. Flom: You can use BVLOS if you have X, and right now we do not have the X 
component. There is surveillance and there is a command and control component of the 
aircraft.  
 
Mr. Flom: We talked a lot about radars straight out of the gate. One of the requirements is 
to see other aircraft in the air and to avoid them. Radar is a great way to see the air traffic 
when there are no eyes directly on board like in a traditional plane. 
 
(1:06:00) Mr. Flom: We have transponders on our planes that sweeps around and looks for 
cooperative targets, which are other registered planes. It tells all of the information involving 
these planes.  
 
Mr. Flom: There is another type of plane that does not have any electrical components. This 
is a non-cooperative target. We cannot use those transponders to give information to 
cooperative targets. A lot of crop spraying planes do not have transponders, making them 
hard to detect. 
 
(1:08:20) Mr. Flom: One of the things with radar is you do not have surface volume. The 
signal carries out much further at lower altitudes and there are spots over the state map that 
need to be filled in.  
 
Mr. Flom: A company here with us makes a sensor that receives this radar information. We 
can deploy these across the state and get full coverage.  
 
(1:10:05) Representative Bob Martinson: How are you able to fly your UAS from Grand 
Forks? 
 
Mr. Flom: Once you get above 18,000 feet, everyone is considered a cooperative target.  
A temporary flight restriction for safety is put in place. 
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Representative Bob Martinson: You talked about a human need to check for other traffic. 
 
Mr. Flom: Everyone at that altitude will have the radar systems and everyone is cooperative. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Would you fly below 18,000 feet? 
 
Mr. Flom: Everything from the ground to 18,000 feet is about where we would fly to. The 
radars out by Watford City are not great radars. We need radars that move quickly and relay 
information. The ones in Minot refresh at 4 seconds and the others are 12 seconds. 
 
(1:13:05) Mr. Flom: The radar information is classified for things like missile defense. The 
command and control standpoint controls how far a UAS can fly. There is a radio line of sight 
component to it. A local antenna that is established kind of controls this.  
 
Mr. Flom: For command and control, how do make something that is secure and cannot be 
hijacked. One of the ways to do that is licensed spectrum from the FAA and FCC. Aviation 
has a high standard with it and that there is no radio influence. 
 
(1:15:50) Mr. Flom: You would have to buy the aviation approved radio to fly on it. We need 
a terrestrial network, mainly antennas, just like your cell phones. They could travel from tower 
to tower and expand the range of usage. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You would have to have secure radio like an 
aircraft would have. He will have to go tower to tower to pick up aircraft in the area and be 
able to communicate with that drone and so no one can hijack that. Am I catching the basics? 
 
(1:18:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: So, we do this within ND, what 
happens if you want to go into Montana and they do not have it? Are we limited then? 
 
Mr. Flom: That is correct. It is like if our road system ends when we get to Montana. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: What network did James mean? 
 
Mr. Flom: National defense, but our network is FAA certifiable and making sure it is intact 
when other states inevitably integrate all of this. 
 
(1:20:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Are we picking winners and losers like 
Sony versus its first competitors? 
 
Mr. Flom: No, we are making sure of that. There is an industry consensus group that brings 
in all of the UAS stakeholders and determine what the minimal operation standards will be 
for this technology.  
 
Mr. Flom: It is a way for everyone in the sector to come together and develop standards. 
Everything we are talking about is professional aviation grade like manned airplanes. 
Everything fits within the national air system. 
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(1:22:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: They will all have enough capability 
to go company to company? 
 
Mr. Flom: That is the intention of this. There are two major front runners trying to use BVLOS, 
one is Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) and Excel Energy. They currently have to create 
their own because nothing is created for them.  
 
Mr. Flom: We have users that want to use these systems, there just is not a system for them 
to operate on. It is like the airport, they put everything together, rather than each creating 
their own system. 
 
(1:25:35) Mr. Flom: The other part I think about to enable this across the state is who benefits 
and uses this? We have talked about industry and state entities that could use this. Search 
and rescue would be limited to visual line of sight and could only fly around ¾ of a mile, which 
is not very helpful. 
 
Mr. Flom: Precision agriculture is another area where our system would completely change 
and increase the rates of which things are completed at.  
 
Mr. Flom: By setting up the network, BVLOS can be taken advantage of by any community 
whether it is law enforcement or commercial services, everyone can use this. The Bakken is 
a test site with a great use case. Pipelines have to be inspected every two weeks.  
 
(1:28:45) Mr. Flom: They can only do a mile of pipeline at a time. It would greatly benefit oil, 
agriculture, railway and road industry inspections.  
 
Mr. Flom: Carrier package and mail planes can be unmanned in the future and save many 
of these man-operated daily missions.  
 
(1:31:35) Representative Mike Nathe: We have an out of state company that would be very 
interested in this if the budget passed. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We would like to hear why you would come to 
ND. 
 
(1:32:15) George Kirov: Harris Corporation is a leading company and we supply 5 of the 7 
FAA networks. This is not really a cutting edge technology; the military has been using these 
for years. What is new about this industry is applying well understood technology to 
commercial uses.  
 
Mr. Kirov: Using radars, radios and using them at low altitudes for UAS. What the FAA wants 
to understand how to use these networks in a different way. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: You are a vendor and a competitor and you would compete 
for a portion of the $30M? 
 
Mr. Kirov: Yes, that is correct. 
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(1:35:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: What is new is that we are going into 
heavily used radars at low altitudes, we need the radar and sensors to have eyes while being 
up in the sky and hot hitting anything. So, we are using these older styles of technology like 
radar and radio to make this work? 
 
Mr. Kirov: Yes, but at a much more efficient level. The safety regulators are very motivated 
and want this to happen.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What makes ND unique other than our wide 
open spaces and a lot few planes in our air space? Will you be testing stuff here? Will you 
set up an industry and have a hub? 
 
Mr. Kirov: Yes, these are correct. We have a huge expertise present and of course the air 
space is wide open for testing and research. There is a drone legacy here over a decade old 
that is used by the military and ND is the only state to have down to the ground air space 
surveillance.  
 
(1:38:30) Representative Mike Nathe: How long to build this out? 
 
Mr. Kirov: We see this as a next generation system. You will never be done, it will continue 
to grow and expand from here on out. It will use commercial and public transportation models 
that will continue to expand.  
 
Mr. Kirov: You will own the network and those who use it will have to pay to use the network. 
It is a shared infrastructure. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Who collects the money? 
 
Mr. Kirov: Whoever pays for the assets owns them and gets to decide this. We are counting 
on leveraging every bit of infrastructure. The network is not the towers, but the radars and 
sensors.  
 
(1:41:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: In order to sell this to our colleagues 
we need to explain that we receive benefits for this. We will have sales tax and I still do not 
know for sure who will own this. We put $30M in, I do not understand exactly what we will 
own. 
 
Mr. Kirov: You can make it a part of the Department of Transportation or make a different 
authority. A profit for authority and you will have the right to decide. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: How long for the $30M build out? 
 
Mr. Kirov: I understand the biennial cycle, talking to the customers and the radio towers 
should all be done within two years.  
 
(1:43:00) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: When you made a comment about 
the initial investment, how long is this? 
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Mr. Kirov: I meant before you could charge for this and it will generate enough revenue to 
continue this project. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You are okay with us putting some conditions 
on having companies pay to come and use it? We are looking to create this and make sure 
everyone benefits from this. 
 
(1:45:30) Mr. Kirov: Thank you for the opportunity. You will own the equipment, the operating 
centers and the ideas behind it. These companies and users would love to pay you to use 
this and if you want to make it available for everyone or try to maximize profits.  
 
Mr. Kirov: It is not well known that without the network, you cannot fly BVLOS. Amazon, 
Google and large package delivery companies would come to test here. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We build it, get the benefit from the testing and 
we do not have a huge population to market to. These companies will test, perfect their 
technology and then leave. 
 
(1:48:30) Tommy Kenville: Introduces self to committee and explains that he is a user of 
the drone systems. I started the first private drone company in ND in 2011. We finally made 
a profit this year and we did not have BVLOS until recently, which makes this way better. 
 
Mr. Kenville: We are willing to pay any fee or charge. Delta and American Airlines did not 
build their networks; they just pay for them. We can help agriculture, oil and other services 
grow and become way more efficient instead of going international looking for business. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do not have a lot of people to bring in these 
huge companies and keep them here for more than just testing and not using. 
 
Mr. Kenville: We tried the agriculture industry, but we could not take down the data. This 
new network will help us take down this data. 
 
(1:51:50) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: If the state owns and operates this, 
I see maintenance costs in the future. There obviously has to be a yearly expense and is 
your income to debt ratio positive? How much would the state have to pay to get it up and 
going? Would that be in direct contact with the private sector in a few years? 
 
Mr. Kenville: In the private sector we have to keep our technology up to standards with 
yours. There will be a fee to keep it upgraded and there will be plenty of companies paying 
monthly as a cost of doing business to get the information quickly. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Is this oil technology surveying difficult to do? 
 
(1:54:15) Mr. Kenville: I had to survey hundreds of miles of pipeline and it is a slow process 
that then needs deciphering after. It is the human error that misses out on the problems they 
are looking for. 
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Representative Mike Nathe: Will this separate us from the other test sites? 
 
Mr. Kenville: It can be looked at as an arms race. If we can stay on the leading edge, I think 
we will all make money and create jobs. It is very fun to keep these young students here. 
Offers support in favor of HB 1018. 
 
(1:56:30) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Do you see the state ownership of 
this being rivaled by private ownership in 5-10 years? 
 
Mr. Kenville: A lot of the outside industry does not have the technology we could have. 
 
(1:57:30) Tom Swoyer: I can speak to the economics of it. We operate a BVLOS system at 
Grand Sky. We are currently in use and operations with that system. They have increased 
from 3 to 6 planes just from BVLOS and helps them obtain contracts. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: Will we be in competition in 10 years? I do not think so due to the price to enact 
and create these systems. The projects that are backed by the state will be the ones that 
stay alive. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: The ownership will be similar to owning roads, but these will be roads of the 
sky. I would recommend that there will be private sector licensing and paying a set fee 
annually with a set percentage of revenue earned. That is a reasonable financial model. 
 
(2:00:30) Representative Bob Martinson: If you want to lease it, operate it and use it, why 
not build it? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: I do not have the capital available to do that right now. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Maybe a low interest loan then? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do not want them to compete with the state. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Our full appropriations are going to ask a lot 
more questions and we will need those answers. 
 
(2:01:30) Mr. Swoyer: There may be head to head in private of us versus a larger company 
like Amazon who wants their own, where a state endorsed network would be more readily 
used by all on a contract basis.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have $30M, $3M for Grand Sky and another 
$3M for a coalition test site. Tell us what you would do with that. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: The money invested into Grand Sky would be used to continue the infrastructure 
of Grand Sky.  
 
(2:03:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: You have used up all of the concrete? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: We need more concrete in the military areas to do more work. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: What are we getting for $3M? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: We need to repair the 17 acres of 4 feet thick concrete and we only have 1/3 
repaired.  
 
(2:04:50) Representative Mike Nathe: Do you have tenants to fill this property? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: I find it better to stay with the existing companies that are already heavily 
invested and getting them even more room and employees to work with. The new ones do 
not show up because they are generally far behind. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: So you are like a shopping center that wants us to remodel 
so you can get more tenants? 
 
(2:06:00) Mr. Swoyer: We are more of a town mayor, but we are making it more affordable 
for these companies to come and establish their base. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: The expansion we are talking about would be used for more infrastructure and 
both companies have put their own money into the ground and that is a long term leveraged 
commitment to ND. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So they have put $50M in? 
 
Mr. Swoyer: They have done $50M and we have done $15.5M from the state. 
 
(2:07:45) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Can it be thought of as a state 
highway with toll roads. 
 
Mr. Swoyer: Yes, that is correct. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If we give you another $3M, how much do you 
expect your tenants to chip in? 
 
(2:08:40) Mr. Swoyer: We would hope that General Atomics would start completing two 
more hangers. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Explain the remaining $3M. 
 
(2:10:20) Mr. Flom: The other $3M would go to supporting the test sites for this coming 
biennium.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: On the green sheets, does that add other funding for markets? 
Adds onetime funding for the improvements and renovations.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: The green sheet for $3M is #21 on the second page and is 
recommended as onetime funding and is at the top of page 2 and is operating costs and 
spending authority of $2M to provide a total of $5M for UAS.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: As long as you can help us find them. Obviously 
the $30M, $3M for Grand Sky and the last $3M for UAS. 
 
(2:13:45) Mr. Flom: Part of this includes carryover funds and the $2M of additional funds. A 
majority of it is salaries for personnel and another being the initiative for the test site. May of 
2018, the state of ND was awarded the UAS pilot program that was given by the US Secretary 
of Transportation.  
 
Mr. Flom: The integration pilot program was an initiative that was started out of the White 
House to expedite the commercial usage of UAS flight over people. We were able to fly over 
a tailgating event at an NDSU football game. 
 
Mr. Flom: We partnered with Botlink to install a parachute and CNN has 850 affiliate news 
stations that they receive their stories from.  
 
(2:17:20) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Did you cover the enhanced use 
grants for $3M? 
 
Mr. Flom: The enhanced use is the Grand Sky funds. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: What happens if we do not give that? 
 
Mr. Flom: That is separate from the test site funds and that other $3M supports the test site. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Where is the test site and how did you get 
funding? 
 
Mr. Flom: Grand Forks and we received our funding from a grant line item through 
commerce. 
 
(2:19:15) Mr. Schneider: They were through as grant dollars, but were paid as operating 
expenses like salaries and run through commerce as a pass through. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do understand pass through grants, but do 
not always know what we are getting. 
 
(2:20:30) Mr. Flom: The test site program supports research initiatives across ND and this 
month we have worked on infrastructure across 15 states. We helped General Atomics fly a 
BVLOS without a follow plane this August.  

 
Mr. Flom: We are able to support contracts for pilots. We have recently gotten Excel Energy 
to use BVLOS. There are 14 other companies that we have showed the direct benefits that 
ND has for testing. We have partnered with Harris Corporation. 
 
(2:23:00) Mr. Flom: We have used 3rd party vendor support across the state. Even if they 
have not used the northern plains test site, they have benefited from their research. 
 



House Appropriations Committee - Education and Environment Division 
HB 1018 
1/22/2019 
Page 15  
   

Mr. Flom: I bring in contracts that support the FAA and NASA. I do not always have 100% 
coverage of our personnel. From a business standpoint, traveling across the country to 
inform people of the ND experience. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So we have been funding salaries, informational 
meetings to try and convince people to come here and trying to gain federal contracts? 
 
(2:25:15) Mr. Flom: Yes, that is correct. Trying to get them to establish a permanent 
presence here. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: It would be nice to see a return on investment including a jobs 
report.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I agree with that. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Do you have an ROI (Return on Investment) on this? 
 
(2:26:30) Mr. Flom: We have additional components involving contracts that make this 
difficult to tell. General Atomics stated that they came here from California because we had 
the test site. We cannot attribute everything they do to our ROI, but it is a contributing factor. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Could you talk to industry and come up with your best ROI. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: North Dakota is not on the beaten trail. I heard 
you say that some of this was carryover. So you want to carryover what is left, how much? 
 
Mr. Flom: The carryover would be about $750,000 to $1M.  
 
(2:29:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: Why did you have that carryover? 
 
Mr. Flom: There was no regulation going into last biennium and we did not know what the 
new regulations would be. We had built a budget around not relying on external funds coming 
in. We have seen a great increase in company interest. We have brought in external contracts 
to pay for things and do not have to rely 100% on state dollars to continue.  
 
Mr. Flom: The introduction of the integrated pilot program’s test site can leverage that and 
will give future benefits. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If we were not heavily relying on general funds 
and gave you authority to use special funds, could we cut some general funds or would that 
be too shaky? 
 
(2:32:05) Mr. Flom: I do not know the difference in funding mechanisms. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Special fees are anything that is not general 
funds like revenue, grants, fees and other generated money. General funds are what we 
balance the budget with.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: If we gave you the authority to collect and spend 
special funds, it would make our balancing much easier. 
 
(2:34:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: Calls a short recess.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens hearing and addresses that there is a 
quorum present. 
 
(1:40) Representative Mike Nathe: Can you explain the $1.1B nominal and $1.67B on 
attachment 1? 
 
(1:50) Mr. Leiman: It takes into account inflation. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: The fourth point of program tranche funding is basically that 
the money is not released until a certain metric is hit to meet criteria before moving onto the 
next step. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: So you would set up all of the rates and everything and then 
collect that? 
 
Mr. Leiman: The gated approach, we cannot spend money until everything is in place. There 
are a number of components. We have to talk to our regulatory agents and security itself. 
We have a number of models to look at, but we do not know what it is worth yet. 
 
(4:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: We give you $36M and trust you to put 
strings on it. If you do not put any strings on it, it takes a while to get the money back. How 
are you envisioning that you could put a toll on it? 
 
Mr. Leiman: I would equate it primarily to the Eastern highway system with an easy pass. 
Each drone has a specific identity like DNA. Just like a vehicle with a license plate, to get into 
the airway you would have to have this licensing.  
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Mr. Leiman: This is what is important about the test site, where they can measure this and 
find the price point in a supply and demand model and make sure we are not over budget. 
 
(6:45) Representative Mike Schatz: Is there any safety issues with this like spying or 
attacks? 
 
Mr. Leiman: One of the capabilities is counter-UAS (Unmanned Aircraft System), which 
defeats bad actors. Our test site does a lot of work with Homeland Security and the National 
Guard. It is unlikely to pass through one of those gates without approval from the FAA 
(Federal Aviation Administration) or FCC (Federal Communications Commission).  
 
Mr. Leiman: They actually use us as a model and proving ground to counter-UAS systems. 
I want you to know and understand that we have been talking about industry and public use. 
 
(9:20) Representative Mike Nathe: What is future BRAC (Building Resources Across 
Communities) risk management? 
 
Mr. Leiman: You will hear military friendliness and improving quality of life. The Air force is 
depending more and more on UAS because pilots are very expensive.  
 
(11:25) Mr. Leiman: We are ahead of the curve and we are standing up this chapter to work 
with the Department of Defense (DOD) and looking for a $400,000 grant.  
 
Mr. Leiman: We are positioning ourselves to keep those jobs and the future funding as well 
as using it as diversification.  
 
(12:50) Representative Tracy Boe: If we are going to invest in building this infrastructure, 
is there room for protection of the exclusivity that they will not build a new system later on? 
 
Mr. Leiman: We are looking at an open systems architecture. A few years later you may find 
antiquated technology measures and need to scrap that or come up with something else. We 
will do a lot of national and international business and have an open source model to update. 
 
(14:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Are you working with any Canadian 
companies? 
 
Mr. Leiman: They tend to stay in the Defense and Security sectors, but we are having talks 
with this. The Canadian’s are probably 6 months to a year ahead of us in the public market 
for BVLOS. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is this a little like a Verizon customer using a 
Verizon tower and you are roaming and use an AT&T tower and the companies figure out at 
the end of the month who owes what. Is that what you have in mind? 
 
(17:15) Mr. Leiman: It would be a fully integrated and leveled system. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You are pretty confident that the ROI on 
attachment 1 is a conservative estimate? 
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Mr. Leiman: Yes, we are only envisioning 12% growth and that is on the lower spectrum. 
Tommy Kenville mentioned earlier that the state has gone from a few dozen jobs to over a 
thousand in just a few years.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Anyone else want to testify on either of these 
topics? What does the committee want to do? 
 
(19:40) Representative Bob Martinson: To do list additions are $1M and looking at 
homeless we put in $300,000 and I would like that put back $1.3M like previous biennia’s.  
 
(21:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: I suppose we should probably look at 
the overall operational budget for this department. Let’s look at the green sheets. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: On page 1, there is an increase in the executive 
fund. In the baseline the general fund was just above $30M. Other funds were $58M for a 
total of $88M and the Governor’s recommendation has an extra $100M for the Teddy 
Roosevelt Library.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What can we pick apart from the base level? 
 
(24:05) Representative Mike Schatz: What is the onetime funding for Research ND? 
 
(24:30) Levi Kinnischtzke: There is a proposal for $20M from general fund Legacy fund 
earnings. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Research ND got what last time? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: They received $2M. 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: The Department of Commerce did not appropriate any for Research ND, 
but they have the authority to spend their funds on these projects. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What fills up the bucket then? 
 
(26:15) Representative Mike Schatz: What does Research ND do? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Anyone want to explain Research ND? 
 
(27:05) Mr. Leiman: ND is a very unique place with the highest survival rate of startup 
companies at 60%, which is 3x the rate of the rest of the country. This helps these new 
companies grow. 
 
Mr. Leiman: A good example is Harris Corporation who received grants from us and UND to 
grow their business. 
 
Mr. Leiman: The intent of the program was to develop as much intellectual property from 
these startups.  
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(29:30) Mr. Leiman: All of these businesses are taking their money elsewhere instead of our 
universities to study these business and research topics. We developed a model for 
informational technology research.  
 
Mr. Leiman: Today, $99 out of every $100 at research universities is public money. We are 
trying to monetize and commercialize these research aspects to decrease the Government 
foot print in the university systems due to the deficit. 
 
Mr. Leiman: This is what makes up the $20M proposal. 
 
(31:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: NDSU has been doing research and 
spinning off businesses that they get some of the royalties. We do not really get to see actual 
numbers. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: In regards to the $20M, we have plenty of programs to help 
with that. What would the Department of Commerce think if we spread that money around 
the private sector in a few other bills? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Commerce has a neutral position on how that money is utilized, we just want to 
see the money used to advance technological research and the model to diversify intellectual 
property. 
 
(33:55) Representative Mike Nathe: IBL is seeing a bill that helps companies bring their 
applied research to commercialization. Is this $20M more than enough? Do they need the 
$20M in this line? 
 
Mr. Leiman: When you look at the costs of getting projects off the ground in examples like 
Harris Corporation, Microsoft and Excel Energy. The $20M would enable us to do between 
60 and 90 projects, which would help us grow our image as well.  
 
Mr. Leiman: We typically do about $200,000-300,000 per project.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: There is quite a demand for these companies that need capital 
to get that idea to market, correct? 
 
(36:25) Mr. Leiman: There is a demand to invest here. We are traveling to find other 
investors in agriculture technology so that we are diversifying. We are working outside the 
traditional executive branches for investors.  
 
Mr. Leiman: Commerce is also tweaking our fund with the bank to create a broader strategy 
to find an influx of large amounts of capital. Similar to direct investment in start-ups. 
 
(38:20) Representative Mike Schatz: What did we get last time for Research ND? 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: We do a trust fund analysis on Research ND. The fund was established 
in 2013 and there was $12M appropriated for onetime to Commerce. In the 15-17 biennium, 
$4.5M was appropriated and last biennium there was no additional funds appropriated, but 
this committee allowed for remaining funds to be used.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The Research ND in June said there was a carryover of around $500,000. 
 
(41:20) Representative Mike Schatz: You said there was $13.6M in there? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: June 30th, 2017 there was an ending balance of $13.6M. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: In 2013 we gave $10M, 2015 was $4.5M and $0 in 2017. 
 
(42:00) Representative Mike Schatz: Bank of North Dakota is looking at these programs 
for a low interest type of loan and I am assuming they will be breaking these down and seeing 
if they are viable. 
 
Mr. Leiman: There is also the development fund at the Department of Commerce. We 
genuinely believe in the diversification of this research like biotech and agriculture. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We send every request we find viable to subject matter experts in the 
Washington D.C. area. There are 3 basic levels of criteria that need to be matched; a 1:1 
private sector match, you have to create jobs in ND and have an active research partner.  
 
(44:00) Mr. Leiman: About 1/3 come back with a do not recommend label, so we do this 
because it is unique and gives us a good reason not to fund everything. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: How many of the businesses fail that have received money 
from you as a gift? 
 
Mr. Leiman: It was 58.4% of the companies in ND. Clean Lithium Technology has done a 
5:1 match of their own money. Another company has a vaccine in the FDA (Food and Drug 
Administration) approval process company. Continues to outline 2 other quick companies 
that have made this a diversified approach and created jobs here. 
 
(46:50) Representative Mike Schatz: Under the partnerships and local relationships, I see 
you have women in business. Is that a government program? 
 
Mr. Leiman: I believe it is a non-profit that we fund through a grant. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There is a lot of stuff to sort through in this 
budget including Research ND, Innovate ND, the Main Street Initiative and Unmanned 
Aircraft Systems (UAS) to look through yet.  
 
(49:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: This is our big budget yet and we may 
have to do some more work. These are all good programs, but we cannot fund them all.  
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Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: My suggestion would be to tie in the first 
page of the green sheets and compare them to the executive budget requests and take the 
list of things we want and add up the total figures. Then look at other things we want that did 
not make the list. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I just wanted to gather information on the big 
ticket items. 
 
(52:10) Representative Bob Martinson: We passed out about $300,000 to Commerce and 
they did not do what they said they would. We need to tighten up the line items a little. It is 
currently in here, so we just have to adjust the line item so they receive it.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Do they need another $300,000? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: They did not receive the money because it was given to 
other things. 
 
(53:40) Richard Glynn: The bioscience association was given the $300,000 to develop a 
program. They took $120,000 of that and put that into Innovate ND and left us with $100,000, 
but it was delayed almost a year.  
 
Mr. Glynn: I used that money to recruit companies. One from Winnipeg, ImmunoPrecise 
Antibodies, which is moving to Fargo and bring around 14 employees and they have begun 
renting laboratory space. The other is Maxigen Biotech from San Diego and they will be 
setting up their manufacturing facility here with about 15 employees.  
 
Mr. Glynn: We have a company called Aldevron here in ND. They have grown from a small 
lab and they just finished a 70,000 square foot building in Fargo with 250 employees. They 
are advertising for another 150 more employees.  
 
(56:40) Mr. Glynn: Maxigen is moving here to partner with Aldevron because they are such 
a market draw. We just had an event in Fargo that highlighted oncology and the new ways 
to do gene therapy. They attracted over 200 companies from the US and Europe. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How much did you get? 
 
Mr. Glynn: We have received around $110,000 with a promised $180,000 total of the 
$300,000 you appropriated. We have the opportunity to grow a company similar to 
GlaxoSmithKline in our state with these partnerships.  
 
(59:15) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: The fact that you did not get it is 
water under the bridge, my concern is that we avoid this and we do not want to have to 
remove flexibility for agencies, but we will have to review these terms. 
 
Mr. Glynn: The administration at the Commerce Department has recently changed and I 
have worked with them closely and they are working very hard to correct that mistake.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you need to move forward? 
 
(1:01:20) Mr. Glynn: Avionics, at this point in time, is waiting for their permit from the FDA, 
but the Government shutdown has slowed this process down. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How much would you like from this budget? 
 
Mr. Glynn: If this committee does approve the Research ND funds, I would like to see some 
set aside for bioscience research. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: We need a number. 
 
(1:03:20) Mr. Glynn: We would like $5M then. 
 
(1:03:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: I kind of like the idea that Research 
ND money gets set aside on different line items in a percentage based way. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: We need to make sure that the money goes to where we want 
it to go. We have to be aware that this money is in the executive recommendation. All of the 
budgets want the ability to move money all over the place and that is our job. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do like the flexibility though because there are 
certain snags that require flexibility to transfer and move funds. Total flexibility is just too 
much.  
 
(1:06:05) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Flexibility was exercised beyond 
the point we expected. We would like to trust the new administration.  
 
Representative Mike Schatz: We can put it in there, they can come to the budget section 
and we can change it for them? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That would work.  
 
(1:07:35) Mr. Leiman: We do not believe the misappropriation for the bioscience is not okay. 
Of the $300,000 there is $120,000 left. One of the things Commerce is engaging in is taking 
the tools on attachment 2 and working closely with them. We want to help recruit these 
companies here and we plan to work much closer with these organizations and utilize the full 
slate of tools. 
 
Mr. Leiman: We feel that we have gotten complacent in the past. We want to ensure that 
every dollar goes towards its intended purpose. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You have brought up partners and we have the 
higher education budget in here. What do you need in your budget or in theirs that helps you 
make a partnership as cheap as you can? Bank of North Dakota has beginning 
entrepreneurship. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Give us some ideas on how to avoid Legacy 
Fund earnings.  
 
(1:11:25) Mr. Leiman: Commerce’s main purpose is to grow and retain wealth. We have a 
wealth of programs at our disposal to work this out. We are working with Bank of North 
Dakota and the university system to diversify research programs. 
 
 
Mr. Leiman: Why not team up with other groups outside of the university system for 
partnerships. We want to have a private and public sector pipeline. We can use intellectual 
properties and emerging technology programs to grow this pipeline.  
 
(1:14:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: You think everything you have told us 
today is doable with the present financial situation that we find ourselves in? Working with 
Bank of North Dakota, we dig into their profits pretty regularly and put a lot of constraints on 
them. They are a tool we could use like a revolving loan fund instead of straight cash. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Could you make a loan agreement? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: You are describing the very bill we heard yesterday. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If that bill passes, what would we need to do? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: If that passes, there is $25M of Legacy Fund money and Bank 
of North Dakota has available money that we like to use when we can. Commerce and 
Representative Mark Sanford have helped develop that bill. 
 
(1:17:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: We would still have to fund this 
though? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Yes. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If that passes, we could use it as a vehicle and 
use less hard cash? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Yes, we could do that.  
 
(1:18:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: It is nice that you understand that bill. 
You can help us break it down.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Did I miss anything on that? 
 
Mr. Leiman: Commerce took a neutral stance because there are so many proposed budgets. 
Private sector funding down the pipeline is something we do not want reluctance on. 
Conceptually, this funding stream and the growth stage of companies, whichever research 
bill passes, the economic development will be funded by that.  
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Mr. Leiman: Research money is seen as a state funding relationship to go and find more 
money and create a commitment. There are strategies in play to make ND a home base for 
certain investment streams. 
 
(1:21:45) Representative Bob Martinson: We should stop testimony and start working on 
this bill in by going down the list. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: When do we need to start kicking these out. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The first I heard was February 22nd and today I 
heard February 11th. Some of our big budgets can take a long time. 
 
(1:23:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: I have to talk to Representative Delzer 
about that, but shoot for something around February 11th.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We can put them out with some major cuts 
because Senate will put it back in. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: We need to get a handle of the money in the overall budget 
picture for every project in every committee.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Workforce is in every budget we have. 
 
(1:25:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: Levi, can you put a list together for 
anything that has workforce in it to miss the duplicates. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I can do that. I believe Job Service puts one together that outlines 
similarities. To my knowledge there are two additional bills that affect Commerce, one is SB 
2263 and HB 1484. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is some duplication in the executive budget requests.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is that in the green sheets? 
 
(1:27:30) Mr. Kinnischtzke: I believe these were introduced after the green sheets were 
made.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Levi has a lot to do, but it would be nice to know how much 
Legacy and SIIF are available to use. Do you have the total SIIF (Strategic Investment and 
Improvement Fund) amount? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have that list. 
 
(1:30:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: Addresses the schedule briefly for the 
morning of 1/23/2019.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Calls the meeting to order and passes out 
attachment 1. We will discuss the $500,000 for the workforce development grant for the 
Tribes. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I think we keep that on there.  
 
(1:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: That was a onetime funding? 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: It was a onetime funding that came out of the student loan fund 
and that is bankrupt now. The Governor’s budget had it out of the SIIF (Strategic Investment 
and Improvement Fund) or general fund. 
 
(1:45) Representative Bob Martinson: I think it should be taken from the Director’s 
Discretionary. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Where is it? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I recommend taking it from the Director’s Discretionary 
Fund, which is line 16 in HB 1018. We should take the $1.5M out of there and leave them 
$700,000.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What does this fund now? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Whatever the acting director wants. 
 
(3:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: So, $500,000 for the tribal college grants 
at a onetime fund and the other to workforce safety at the North Dakota Safety Council. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Does it buy their services? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: It is discretionary to them. Last session it was $300,000 
and the Governor vetoed it and he owed us $1M.  
 
Representative Mike Schatz: What will this be used for, this tribal college money? 
 
(5:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: They got $500,000 last time, but it was 
onetime and does not show up as base line funding. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: This started out a few sessions ago when we put $1.5M for the 
tribal colleges to start workforce programs. We required that they would bring success 
performance reports. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: Only one college has shown data, so this $500,000 would be 
for them and they could obtain these funds if they supply the data. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Which college is this? 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: It is Turtle Mountain. 
 
(7:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Turtle Mountain is the only one who has 
turned in the data on how it has worked for them. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: I do not know if they have named the new President of Turtle 
Mountain.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Historically, the former President gave us the 
reports. 
 
(8:20) Representative Mark Sanford: The $500,000 was $100,000 for each tribal college? 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: It is $500,000 dollars and is prorated out to whoever can return 
with the data. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Only one turned in the data, so only one got it. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: So if all 5 came in it is $100,000 each, but $500,000 to one 
school if only they come in. 
 
(9:25) Representative Bob Martinson: It was $500,000 to one school? 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: It is $500,000 total and only one college reported, so just them. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That chops down line 16 of HB 1018 to 
$700,000. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: It is the Safety Council, not workforce safety.  
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(11:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Item 2 of attachment 1 adds homeless 
shelter grants. I believe there is a Senate bill for that. If that bill passes it would add how 
much? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It would be $1.5M, if passed. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Any reason for us to put it in here if that bill 
passes? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: We cut it back too much last time and homelessness is 
much worse in North Dakota than originally thought. Maybe we want to follow that other bill.  
 
(12:55) Representative Bob Martinson: I have never been sure why it is in the commerce 
budget. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is SB 2263 and it looks like they had a hearing on 1/22/2019. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: We have been asked to help feed some of the homeless 
people, but a lot of them moved to Fargo and out east.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Where does it go? Is it competitive grants or treat all shelters 
equally? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I would have to check, but I believe the Homeless Coalition is involved. 
 
(14:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is it a grants line item hidden in line 15 
of HB 1018.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Based on Representative Bob Martinson’s proposal, it would total $1.6M. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Mine was a total of $1.5M too. I meant add the $1.2M with 
the $300,000. 
 
(16:00) Representative Mike Schatz: Are these given to the City of Bismarck? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I believe it is mostly non-profit organizations. 
 
Ms. Bloms: I have no information. 
 
(16:55) Christina Sambor: Introduces self to committee. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How is that money distributed? 
 
Ms. Sambor: I have a spreadsheet from last session of where the money went. None of the 
money went to administration costs. There is a chunk of it that helps struggling people pay 
rent and prevent homelessness and there are costs that go to homeless programs. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: There was $300,000 and did all of that? 
Ms. Sanborn: You will see a significant drop off across the state after those cuts were made.  
 
(19:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Who decides who gets this money and 
distributes it? 
 
Ms. Sambor: I believe it is reimbursement based that the shelters apply for. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That $300,000 would not go far. 
 
Ms. Sambor: The cut down to $300,000 does not give us much money. A lot of programs 
did not have funds for prevention and we could not afford to collect data and bring the findings 
to you.  
 
(21:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Attachment 2 is being passed out on 
the homeless numbers in North Dakota. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Let’s add the $1.2M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Even with the Senate Bill going on, we should 
still add it. 
 
(22:25) Representative Bob Martinson: I think we should still keep the $300,000. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We cannot really name a company in the bill, 
but we can make it work. Is that new general fund money? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: The $300,000 should be from the base, right? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is from the Research North Dakota fund. 
 
(23:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There was no new appropriation funds last time, but funds were 
used and Commerce has a continuing appropriation to used funds from Research ND. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How much money is left over from the Research 
North Dakota fund? 
 
(24:50) Mr. Kinnischtzke: We do a trust fund analysis and as of the end of the 2015-2017 
biennium, that fund had $13.6M, but due to action, there was $4M transferred straight into 
the general fund and another $3.5M taken out and designated to Commerce for projects.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There are also a few research grants too coming out. It was estimated 
that there was roughly $500,000 remaining. That does not include the Governor’s 
recommendation of $20M for Research ND. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So there is about $500,000 left in there and 
cover the $300,000, but pretty much wipe it out. 
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(27:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: If we do this, that only leaves about 
$200,000 in that fund floating around.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Hands out attachment 3 on the figures involved in the homeless shelter 
funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Are you okay with $1.5M total then? 
 
(28:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is the $20M for Beyond Visual Line of 
Sight (BVLOS)? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The proposal for BVLOS is $30M and derived from Legacy Fund and 
general funds.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: It is on the green sheet, but not the bill.  
 
(30:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you think about BVLOS and 
what would the funding source be? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It would be legacy earning turned into general funds and appropriated to 
them. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: We have to hear long and hard about this. If they keep this test 
site as the number one across the country, it brings in serious attention to the state. It would 
create a few thousand high paying jobs and advance our technology and diversity in the 
state. 
 
(31:30) Representative Mike Nathe: I think it is vital. The BRAC (Building Resources Across 
Communities) factor is also pretty big. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have always had a BRAC lobby. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: I was out there and saw this and the possibilities. They are 
even brining in NATO (North Atlantic Treaty Organization) countries, but they are struggling 
to get in the data out because they are short on funding. 
 
(32:45) Representative Mike Nathe: I am in favor, the dollar amount I am not sure about, 
but whatever is doable. Do we do part and hopefully find the rest? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: We took a chance with $3M last session and it paid off 
greatly. I am not so sure about Grand Sky, but I am about this one. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Grand Sky is only $3M and we have already put 
in $15M, so they would be using this to repair and expand. If we are putting $30M into UAS 
(Unmanned Aircraft Systems), it is hard to put $36M total into this project. 
 



House Appropriations Committee – Education and Environment Division  
HB 1018 
1/23/2019 
Page 6  
   

(34:35) Representative Mark Sanford: I think there is a priority. If you put in the test site, 
you get a partnership with the Feds. Grand Sky does not have that commitment and still have 
done good work. The test site one is kind of our contribution to this relationship with the Feds. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: I think there is significant potential with the $30M and the 
nature of it is that it takes UAS statewide and becomes state property. It has revenue creating 
value and I think we have the right people in place that ties it together with the necessary 
programs.  
 
(37:05) Representative Tracy Boe: The $3M to create more concrete for Grand Sky should 
have maintenance leases in their contracts. For the $30M, I had asked for some data on how 
much we spend on chase flights, so we have no idea how much we will save on that. I would 
like to see what we could expect in revenue.  
 
Representative Tracy Boe: Unless we save a significant amount on chase flights, it may be 
hard to generate revenue. 
 
(38:40) Representative Mike Nathe: The revenue on a company I spoke with is over 
$600,000 for their company alone on chase flights. Combined with the open skies, BVLOS 
and the system we have makes us number 1. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: DOD is on the cusp of looking at very big things dealing with 
this. It is kind of a leap of faith with technology and I think we would be missing a huge 
opportunity. I do not know if $30M is doable, but we definitely need to get in on this. 
 
(40:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Research ND does 60-100 projects at 
around $300,000 per project. They asked for $20M and it is totally separate from BVLOS. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That is $50M total just between those two 
programs. They have dwindled greatly from $13M to $500,000 over the last few biennia.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not know how many projects we get out of 
$30M. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: I think their $20M was a placeholder for HB 1333 where we 
invest in companies that need a bit of a push to get across the goal line for research 
companies. 
 
(42:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: So we give Research ND nothing if we 
fund them at the full amount? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Did they get $2M last time? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The appropriations for 2013-2015 was $12M, 2015-2017 was $4.5M and 
there was nothing appropriated in 2017-2019. 
 
(43:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: They started with $13.6M and they 
spent $4.5M and $3.5M and are now down to $500,000 and are pretty much broke. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: So HB 1333, is that the one for research? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: It is to commercialize some businesses research. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: That has $25M in the bill? 
 
(44:55) Representative Mike Nathe: Yes, but that number will be moved around. It is in IBL 
and being worked on by a subcommittee. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: It is $0 now. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It is $0 now has $500,000 carryover. Should we 
leave it at $0 and hope HB 1333 takes effect and funds that? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: We should get that. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I think Full Appropriations committee will get that 
and not us. 
 
(46:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: We will have to tell the committee we 
like Research ND and put nothing in here and hope it gets passed over there. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Leave it at $0. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: What about the $500,000 carryover? Maybe we can put it 
on the take it list and remember we have that leftover for something.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Remember we added $1.2M for homeless too. 
 
(47:35) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Might want to specify the funding source out of the discretionary 
fund and of that $2.2M base, $1.2M is general fund and $1M was provided last time from 
Research ND. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: If the proposal is to reduce the discretionary base fund of $2.2M by $1.5M, 
how much of that do you want to reduce from general fund versus Research ND? 
 
(48:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: We can call it general fund like the 
Governor did, but the general fund will then be in the negative. Do we have to specify if it will 
be from general fund or legacy fund? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The thought was to decrease the general fund by $1.2M and then 
$300,000 from ongoing Research ND. If there is not additional funding for Research ND, the 
$2.2M discretionary fund would not have the $1M and would only have $1.2M in it. 
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(50:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: If there is $1.2M in the discretionary 
fund and leave that as general funds, then you said there was $1M from Research ND. We 
will end up with $0 in the discretionary fund. If we strip $300,000 out of the Research ND and 
add it to the $1.2M for homeless, then we will have $1.5M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There will be $200,000 left in the Research ND 
fund, we will hope that it gets funded by HB 1333. It will basically have enough to fund one 
more project.  
 
(52:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are zeroing out the discretionary 
fund, zeroing out the Research ND fund.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is $2.2M in the discretionary fund. $1.2M from the general fund and 
$1M from Research ND.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There is nothing to take from Research ND, 
making discretionary fund $0. 
 
(53:30) Representative Bob Martinson: Yep, $0. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: As long as Levi gets it and puts it in there, I am okay on 
everything.  
 
(54:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Let’s talk about another big dog; the 
$30M for BVLOS (Beyond Visual Line of Sight).  
 
Representative Tracy Boe: At $600,000 for chase flights and 5 providers is $3M and when 
you  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I would say that this should be funded out of the 
SIIF fund. Is this not relevant to strategic investment and improvement?  
 
(56:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are building essentially a virtual 
highway. Put that in as SIIF funds for $30M. What do we do for Grand Sky? The request is 
$3M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have already pumped in $15M, but they 
have returned on it.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: How much have they put in themselves and are they the 
only one that leases? 
 
(57:25) Mr. Kinnischtzke: I do not have all of the information, but I do believe that Grand 
Sky is the only one that leases.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How much do they pay? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I am unaware of that. 
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(58:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Tom Swoyer gets us to put $15M in to 
repair the old airbase runway and got a few businesses to come in. They have 2 big clients 
that pay Tom Swoyer rent and he has put some of his own money in there to make it attractive 
for them. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: For the most part, these companies have built 
their own structures the way they wanted. How much of our money did they spend on 
improvements and how much did they pocket? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do get jobs out of it and do work with the air 
base. 
 
(1:00:05) Representative Tracy Boe: Since the $30M is a plucked number and they were 
unsure of the actual cost, could they use any residual funds for maintenance costs on these 
runways? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They have some good ideas, but they have not 
exactly explained where that $30M goes. I suppose we could give the $25M out of SIIF and 
$1M into Grand Sky and $1M into the test site. 
 
(1:00:35) Representative Bob Martinson: I would like to keep the $30M and make the $3M 
and $3M as $0 and see what happens. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The other $2M is spending authority from Federal funds and donations 
that match the federal fund grants.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I am fine with leaving that. 
 
(1:02:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Senate Appropriations will put some 
back in there. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The $2M is federal and spending authority. 
 
(1:03:15) Representative Mark Sanford: I think we should make it a friendly amendment of 
$29M and $1M for the test site because that is carryover for the Feds and helps us establish 
them as a critical partner. Grand Sky is a commercial venture that happens to take advantage 
of these projects. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: The test site is the big piece and the work that gets national 
attention will come from this test site. The uncertainty comes from what is the source going 
to be. I think we should take the money and give them a state commitment on there. 
 
(1:05:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: So you want to chop the $30M to 
$29M and give $1M to the test site. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: So a total of $30M from SIIF? 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Yes. 
 
(1:05:35) Representative Mark Sanford: I think the carryover establishes a state 
partnership.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The $2M is just authority to get that money and 
spend it. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The Governor requests onetime funding and since it is from SIIF, we will 
have to designate this as onetime funding. 
 
(1:06:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: Innovate North Dakota, I have a few 
notes on that. What exactly did that do? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Multi-phase grant program and resource tools.  
Current appropriation for Innovate ND is $3M and change, and is that funded from SIIF? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: General fund. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They are requesting $4M from SIIF. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Did they say why? 
 
(1:09:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: They are growing entrepreneurs. 
 
Ms. Bloms: They have recognized a demand and continued to grow. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there any carryover? 
 
Ms. Bloms: I am not sure. 
 
(1:09:20) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Legislative appropriation was $2.25M for Innovate ND and the 
Governor’s veto reduced it to $1.95M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Why did he veto? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That was a part of the workforce safety council issue.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: And that includes the safety council? 
 
(1:10:30) Representative Mike Schatz: So the base funding was $1.95M last time? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The total recommended line was $4.9M and the increase in $4M would 
come from SIIF. There was a net reduction of over $1M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Where do you want to go on there? 
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Representative Mike Schatz: If they got by last year on $1.95M, I do not think we need to 
double it. 
 
(1:11:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: I think I am with you on that. We have 
been trying to grow entrepreneurs. Should we give them $2M? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Which is that for? The one with the entrepreneurial grants? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, the $900,000 was to be given from Research ND.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Maybe we would want to put a question mark behind the 
$900,000 and I would rather see that make up the $30M. I think we have done a lot of that 
the last few sessions and I am not sure what the return on that is. 
 
(1:13:30) Representative Bob Martinson: If we are looking for $900,000, we can come 
back to it. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I am thinking that the innovation center in Grand 
Forks was impressive. Grand Forks, Fargo and Bismarck all get one. They will make money 
for the state and hire people. 
 
(1:14:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: There was a doctor who made a drink 
and is marketing and a French guy who is making crepes and marketing. I would like to see 
the $900,000 continue and another $1M. Let’s keep it with a question mark and maybe give 
them $1.9M. 
 
(1:16:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: A low interest loan from Bank of North 
Dakota under Research ND and the development fund from Commerce is what I have written. 
 
(1:17:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: We have not talked about workforce 
development.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Passed out attachment 4 to the committee. Attachment is produced by 
Commerce and outlines the workforce training programs. This should have information from 
the 17-19 biennium and the current biennium. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They might have funds in here and I do not think 
DPI is a big player. 
 
(1:19:25) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is an outline on page 3 of attachment 4. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Let’s look at this list on attachment 4. We may 
have to do Job Service HB 1016 on 1/24/2019 in the afternoon.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Let’s make a schedule that gives us deadlines to move 
forward. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Tomorrow we hear HB 1030 and HB 1031 in the 
morning. Then we should finish up HB 1016 and HB 1009. We are done with CTE now and 
let’s keep working on Commerce.  
 
(1:23:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Attachment 4 has the $500,000 for 
Tribal Colleges and we okayed that. The Governor recommended $1.8M for operation intern 
and their base is $950,000? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Operation Intern funds businesses to use interns and help train them. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: These are college graduates or certified 
students? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Let’s leave it at $950,000. 
 
(1:24:40) Representative Mike Schatz: Operation Intern has a base of $950,000 last 
session; was it funded the session before last? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, it was around before. In the 15-17 biennium is was funded as 
$1.55M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So we cut it last time too. Let’s leave it at 
$950,000. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Youth innovation is a new program and I do not 
think we need new programs, so $0.  
 
(1:26:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: Statewide Marketing Campaign will 
remain at $0.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Career exposure will stay at $0. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: AmeriCorps is mostly federal and we cannot 
mess with that. Leave it as $207,000 of state money and the $1.9M from Federal.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Isn’t it the old Job Corps? 
 
(1:28:00) Representative Mike Schatz: I’ll google it.  
 
Ms. Bloms: We just recommended to leave it. 
 
(1:28:30) Carla Valentine: It does after school programs and gives students a place to go. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Leave it at $207,000. Rural nursing program 
has been $0 and I do not think you will do a whole lot with $750,000. 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: The Governor proposed that it comes from SIIF. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Put it in at $0 then. Next is Area Health 
Education Center (AHEC). It was $300,000 discretionary, which is wiped out and has $0 in 
the base. Looks like it is $0. 
 
(1:30:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: I think the Senate might put some 
money into the discretionary fund. CTE was nixed and TrainND was left. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Page 2 is all scholarship programs and I am not sure where they would 
be in terms of state agencies. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Some of these are higher education and they wanted to 
transfer that authority to DPI because they have the database. 
 
(1:32:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not see anything else here that is 
through Commerce. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Anything else? Do we need to go through the 
bill? We should ask about vacant FTE’s (full time employee). 
 
(1:33:05) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There are currently 20 vacant FTE’s and some of those were 
proposed to be reduced and the department has gone through a reorganization and how 
those will be filled is still being worked through. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Some of those have been on the chopping 
block. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The count of FTE after reduction was 60.8 FTE’s. 
 
(1:34:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: There are 60 FTE’s and 20 are 
vacant? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There was removal of 13 FTE’s and they did a strategic reorganization of 
what they are trying to do with a new commissioner. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If we go along and cut 5.6 FTE’s, do we have to 
name those? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: You would not have to specify them if you did not want to. 
 
(1:35:30) Ms. Bloms: The agency identified specific cuts and the dollar amount is in there 
for the cut positions. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Which is it? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How much is it? 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: The reduction of 5.6 FTE totals $588,000 from general funds and 
$113,000 from other funds for a total of $700,000 in reduction.  
 
(1:36:40) Representative Mike Schatz: Take it. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: I was going to second that motion that you carry it. 
 
(1:37:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: Why did operating expenses raise 
from $15.5M to $52M? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The base is $15.47M and the Governor proposed over $50M and $30M 
of that would be for BVLOS and another $1M for the census 2020.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Does Commerce do the census? We probably 
have to fund census 2020. 
 
(1:39:00) Mr. Kinnischtzke: They do fund it and my understanding is that this $1M from SIIF 
is that certain cases for pockets of ND that the Federal Government does the census and 
there are more people living in low income areas than are allowed in those buildings due to 
safety codes. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The though is that this program will help identify the overall correct count 
to catch overpopulated areas. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: I am curious where these areas are. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Your district and the oil areas where the man 
camps had overpopulation. The only other thing I can think of is the migrant areas with 
migrant workers being cramped into tight trailer houses. 
 
(1:41:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: When they get to level of population 
allowed in a place they stop at the highest level allowed? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is thought of as a statewide issue. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: There are cases where participants are hiding extra people in 
order to keep their benefits. 
 
(1:43:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: This census 2020 is $1M and from 
SIIF.  
 
Representative Tracy Boe: It is an investment into the funding formula by the Federal 
Government for the future. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How do we want to fund this? Do you think this 
should be funded from SIIF or should we be honest and call it a general fund? 
 
(1:44:20) Representative Bob Martinson: Why do we need to fund this now? 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: This is the 2019-2021 biennium and the census 
is in the middle of this. Put it in at $1M and call it general fund. In the end it will probably 
come from the Legacy Fund.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: When will we be done with Commerce? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Tomorrow afternoon or Friday. Everything other 
than possibly the Teddy Roosevelt Library. 
 
(1:46:20) Mr. Kinnischtzke: We have not addressed a few other things like the transfer of 
the Pre-K community program. It is proposed to transfer it to DPI (Department of Public 
Instruction).  
 
Ms. Bloms: That is line 12 in HB 1018’s green sheet. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Are you able to tell us where we are now versus last 
biennium on the base line? 
 
(1:47:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: I could get that pretty quick. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I know it will be above the $30M. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I will start with that tomorrow. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We will have to discuss moving money from 
here into DPI’s budget. 
 
(1:48:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes the hearing on HB 1018. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens meeting. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We were talking about the trade office and it 
seems like we took money from there. There is a bill that would move the trade office from 
the Department of Commerce to the Agriculture Commissioner. 
 
(1:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: We took a lot of money out of the trade 
office and took about $400,000 out from the $2M base budget and dropped it down to $1.6M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The scrutiny facing them is that they have not 
been fighting hard for agriculture. Expectations were that if it was in the agriculture 
commissioner’s budget it would have a higher priority.  
 
(2:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: Levi Kinnischtzke passed out 
attachment 1 regarding the numbers so far. 
 
(2:50) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Begins to outline attachment 1. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You are working off the executive budget, but 
not the base? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: This compares both and the base budget is the very top line of 
attachment 1. 
 
(4:15) Representative Mike Nathe: On the bottom, there is the total changes to the base? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct. 
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Representative Mike Nathe: We are $35M below the base? 
 
(4:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: On attachment 1, the first set of columns is the executive 
recommendations, the second column is what this committee has discussed and the third is 
comparing the two. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Continues to outline attachment 1. 
 
(5:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: I think we have given up trying to find 
$50M for the Teddy Roosevelt library.  
 
(7:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: You have done the payroll now so it is 
the 2% and 2% increases? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct, they have been included. Returns to outlining attachment 1. 
 
(8:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: We took out the 1 FTE (full time 
employee) position transfer from CTE (Career and Technical Education) to ITD (Information 
Technology Department) for IT (Information technology) consolidation. I think we just leave 
it and let it fly.  
 
(9:15) Representative Mark Sanford: Which committee will make that decision? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I am guessing it will be our leadership. I think it 
makes some sense. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: They are doing this in some of the other sections and to be 
consistent, I have no problem especially because it is 1 FTE. 
 
(10:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: We pretty much decided to let them go 
with it.  
 
(10:30) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Returns to attachment 1 starting on technology operating 
expenses increase. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: This would be unique to this budget for all of 
them that say adjust funding and we just took the Governor’s recommendation on that one.  
 
(12:10) Representative Mike Nathe: When it came to UAS (Unmanned Aircraft System), 
the test site and Grand Sky, is that the same thing? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It was proposed as one-time funding. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Where is the Grand Sky item? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The enhanced use lease grants. 
 
(13:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Continues covering line items on attachment 1. 
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(14:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: We were approached and were asked 
to put a little bit of money into that because they had some ongoing projects going on. They 
were looking for around $500,000. Representative Mike Nathe was thinking maybe $1M for 
the removal of Research ND fund item.  
 
(15:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Returns to line items on attachment 1 at the unmanned aircraft 
systems program.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That is for the test site? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct. Returns to attachment 1 on the Microsoft Office 365 item. 
 
(17:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Representative Beadle was trying to tell 
us that they need to update the Microsoft Office.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Continues at the Operation Intern line on attachment 1. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We did not reduce the base though. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It was reorganized for $95,000. 
 
(18:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: That is why I had a problem for state 
marketing initiatives, but if they had money in the base, they would still have items. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Returns to attachment 1. 
 
(19:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is the add funding for youth innovation 
in the base? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: No, and you guys did not put it in. Continues on attachment 1. 
 
(20:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: And they are the same as the 
Governor’s recommendation? Did they have a base budget before? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Let me check for you. The $270,000 is Federal matching funds. Continues 
outline attachment 1 on base retention funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There is no money in BRAC (Building 
Resources Across Communities)? 
 
(22:20) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct. Returns to attachment 1 on the APEC (Agriculture 
Products Utilization Commission) line.  
 
(24:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Begins presenting the one-time funding items column on 
attachment 1. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: What if there is not enough SIIF (Strategic 
Investment and Improvement Fund) money? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There should be sufficient funds to cover that. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What if other bills and committees use that 
money? 
 
(25:05) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is something our office tracks and we will communicate that 
to the committees and leadership. Returns to attachment 1. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We heard a bill in full committee this morning 
for HB 1402 that has not been settled yet. I did not hear the outcome of that. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Representative Delzer told me that we are 
not taking action on HB 1402 until HB 1018 is finished. 
 
(27:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: I think he is intending for us to put money 
into rural nursing and kill HB 1402. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: I think that is the intent. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Put a mark by that one then. He likes HB 1402, 
but would just make more sense to have it in HB 1018. 
 
(27:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: Add funding for nursing faculty grants 
was cut and has nothing to do with HB 1402. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We said no to career exposure tools and we 
said no. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: My understanding is that some of the money was used for these nursing 
programs, but not specified and was used as one-time funding. Continues in the one-time 
funding on attachment 1.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What is the $948,000 is the carryover? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is their base and that is $1.95M. Part of that reduction is $1.2M in 
spending authority. 
 
(30:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there any base money there for 
Research ND? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I am talking about Innovate ND. The last item is the North Dakota Safety 
Council. Taking out the $50M for the Teddy Roosevelt library, the increase to the base 
general fund is $138,440. It is actually a reduction of $3.5M ongoing funding and $30M for 
one-time funding of the UAS programs.  
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(32:25) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Could you tell us how many total SIIF 
funds we have in here now? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It would be $30M SIIF for UAS programs of $27M for BVLOS (Beyond 
Visual Line of Sight), $2M for the test site and $1M for Grand Sky. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The other funds at the bottom of attachment 1 
for $30M is all SIIF. We have increased general fund spending above the base, which 
includes the raises, $138,400 and increased the other funds by $26.5M and the total increase 
is $26.9M. Reduced FTE by 5.6. 
 
(35:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Our only questions are the rural nursing 
grants and the IT transfer. I do not think we need to look at what the Governor did, we took 
his $1.6M recommendation for the trade office.  
 
Representative Tracy Boe: I would like an explanation on the 60% of the $1.6M and what 
would happen if we changed it to 50%? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That would require the department to raise additional funds. I believe it 
was actually 70% matching last session and was changed to 60%. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: Do we know who they typically partner with? Is this like the ND 
Wheat Commission? 
 
(36:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: I think it would be. Is that checkoff 
money? I am thinking that is what is going on. I do not think there would be any federal funds. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The funding for the trade office of $1.6M is all general funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They use that to leverage money from 
commodity groups. 
 
(37:50) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is a list of members; Adam’s Family Farm, Bremer Bank, 
Bobcat, etc.  
 
(38:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: It is from industry groups. Does it make 
sense to move it over to agriculture and how many FTE are in the trade office? I think it was 
only a few and I guess it does not really matter. 
 
(39:45) Representative Bob Martinson: I think it is interesting that they do not think the 
trade office is doing enough to promote agriculture.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Maybe Doug Goehring is thinking that more 
commodity groups would step up and give more under the agriculture commission. He is the 
beneficiary of a lot of this travel. This is mostly just a pass-through grant. 
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(41:00) Representative Tracy Boe: It may be premature to look at this number because it 
was 70% and we moved it to 60% and if we moved it to 50% we would generate more match 
dollars. If it was not a great move, I am sure someone would come and tell us.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do need to talk about that eventually. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: There is the bill that moves the trade office 
from Commerce to the Agriculture Department. 
 
(43:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Outline section 9 on page 2 of attachment 1. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What do we need this section for? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is an identifying section. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Section 10 is gone.  
 
(44:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The only thing I have not included is an item that specifically 
designates where the committee wants the biotech grants to go. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There is a bill someplace in the Senate that 
would have money for biotech.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: We could specifically identify them. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: You can and if you tell the council to put it in, they will. 
 
(45:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is above my paygrade. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there anything else in their base that needs 
adjustment in IBARS (Internet Budget Analysis and Reporting System)?  
 
(46:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: One item we went into was the grants item, which makes up about 
$49M of their base. There is $13M of salaries and other miscellaneous items have been 
talked about. The $15.5M increase in operating expenses is in there. There would be a 
reduction of about $1.5M of ongoing operational expenses. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It would be a net increase from the base of about $28M, which is operating 
for the one-time funding of BVLOS.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So what we did with the grants took it from $49M 
to what? 
 
(48:35) Mr. Kinnischtzke: We did not address that, just addressed the Governor’s 
recommendation. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: If they really needed money, they could make 
the case for the Senate to put it in. We are down to the trade office issue and the nursing, 
which are both hinged on 2 other bills. Representative Mike Nathe wanted to carry this. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I will be a gentleman and let Representative Mike Nathe 
carry it. 
 
(50:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes hearing on HB 1018. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens meeting on HB 1018. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have a few things to talk about regarding 
the trade office and APUC (Agricultural Products Utilization Commission). There are bills to 
move them, but in Commerce we can just leave them for now. 
 
(1:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Of the $30M increase, we had $27M for 
BVLOS (Beyond Visual Line of Sight), $2M for the test site and $1M for Grand Sky and our 
leaders recommended using that from general fund. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Any reason why? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They wanted us to be more honest. If we have 
transfer Legacy funds to make it balance out eventually, it can be done. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: That will increase the base level funding here then. It is under 
one-time funding items. 
 
(2:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Is it Legacy funds? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is all SIIF (Strategic Investment and Improvement fund) funds.  
 
(2:55) Representative Tracy Boe: We are good with the number, just not the source? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Correct.  
 
(3:20) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: The payback and exactly what we are 
getting for our $30M were really the only questions raised.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Representative Delzer is working with Allen 
Knudson to work on payback amendments in order for us to get a 10-15% return on the UAS 
(Unmanned Aircraft Systems) highway. 
 
(4:20) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: They are working on getting the 
answers for the questions we were asking. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Is Allen Knudson reaching out to Commerce on that? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I would imagine. Was it Research ND that was 
asking for money for pipeline research?  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Yes. 
 
(5:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: They said it was okay to give them a few 
hundred thousand dollars for that. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: The line on attachment 1 says to remove 
funds from Research ND. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We scratched that down to $0 and they asked 
for $200,000. 
 
(6:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is not Research ND, I think you are meaning AHEC (Area 
Health Education Centers) in HB 1402? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: No. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The executive budget included a request of $20M from the general fund. 
That $2.2M is included in the $3.2M from last session and there was no money behind it now. 
That would then reduce Research ND and the $200,000 I am thinking about is AHEC. 
 
(7:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Someone from the Governor’s office told 
us about a few projects they would like funded. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: The Governor had proposed $20M for Research ND, but there 
were a few projects in the pipeline and they wanted money to continue. We could just put a 
number in there. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: We have $2.2M taken out and you want to 
put $200,000 in. 
 
(8:15) Representative Mike Nathe: We took the $20M out of Research ND. 
 
Representative Tracy Boe: What is the difference for the Research ND fund and Research 
ND? 
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(8:50) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is just one Research ND, there is a fund and Commerce has 
an ongoing appropriation to spend those funds. They used this to fund other items in 
Commerce. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Those other items are that $3.2M and since that was spent, the projected 
Research ND is projected to be lower and that $2.2M is spending authority in their budget, 
but there is no money to spend, so they wanted to reduce the spending authority. 
 
(10:00) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That $20M would be new money added. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If we wanted to add $200,000, we could remove 
the $2.2M and add that to the general fund? 
 
(10:40) Representative Mike Schatz: What are the projects they need the money for? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do not know, but let’s just leave it out and 
keep it the way it is. If the trade office stays, we do not need to do anything with this. 
 
(11:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: Anything else? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: We have walked through attachment 1, but the only changes are the 
removal of the $50M for the Teddy Roosevelt Library and added a section 10 for the 
biotechnology grants on page 3 of attachment 1. 
 
(12:55) Representative Mike Nathe: The other bill we talked about was HB 1333 and is 
being funded with $10M in Bank of North Dakota profits, would that have to come through 
here? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It would be $3M and almost predominantly dealing with the bank, but 
Commerce’s only job would be appointing people to deal with the bank. 
 
(13:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: The HB 1402 is in another committee, 
so there is no reason to address that. Any sections we need to discuss? I do not think so. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: How much does APUC have in the unspent funds?  
 
(15:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: I will get back to you on that figure. 
 
(15:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: Section 5 of attachment 1 transfers 
$855,000 from operating expenses to Operation Intern, what is that? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The committee agreed to do that. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not even remember that. 
 
(16:30) Renae Bloms: That funding gets transferred into the specific fund to carryout 
internship programs. You decided to keep it at its base funding level. 
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Representative Mike Nathe: That has been around for a while? 
 
Ms. Bloms: Correct, that is not a new program. 
 
(17:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: We did not add anything to the trade 
office, right? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct, the committee used the executive recommendation to reduce it 
by $400,000.  
 
(18:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: There is nothing changing in these then. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Section 6 of attachment 1 was the only question mark because the plan 
was to speak to the full committee about it. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We did not get a change yet, but I do not think 
that will be a problem. I think for now that HB 1019 is ready. 
 
(19:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Where are we compared to the base 
level? Base was $30.34M of general funds and $58M other funds. Our base level is $138,000 
over? 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: That does not include the UAS. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Total changes to base level funding is $138,000 
and includes salaries. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: That will not include the UAS for $30M yet because that has 
not been moved over to the general funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It will move that out of the other funds then.  
 
(20:55) Representative Mike Nathe: The leadership did not want the $30M in other funds, 
but rather general funds and we can explain that saying it was SIIF money, but put into 
general funds instead.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: BVLOS was one thing they really wanted to be 
upfront with. It will make it more difficult to describe on the floor. 
 
(22:00) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The proposal for BVLOS was all general fund. During a previous 
committee meeting the $30M was all meant to be SIIF, but the original executive 
recommendation was general fund.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not know where they expect to get all of the 
money for general fund, but we have agreed on everything.  
 
(23:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes meeting on HB 1018. 
 









2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1018 
2/13/2019 

32699 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department 

of commerce; to provide exemptions; and to provide for a transfer. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 

 
 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order, Representative Nathe will be the carrier for 
HB 1018 
 
 Representative Nathe: Reviews amendment 19.0206.01005 Starting with the SPA, there 
are adjustments for the payroll changes. Number 2 if the funding for salary and benefits. 3 
shows the removal of FTEs. 4 is the adjustment to the base level funding.  Page 5 includes 
Microsoft office, number 6 adds funding for the unmanned aircraft systems. Number 7 we 
transfer 1.5 million for pre-K to DPI. Number 6 we reduced funding for APUC, 2.47 million 
dollars was the adjustment, they are staying more in line with the Mill and Elevator profits. 9-
10 go together, we are zeroing out Research ND. Funding the homeless shelters, we added 
1.2 million dollars to help with those problems we have here in the state. Funding for bio tech 
grants, it was 300 thousand dollars and we left that the same. They have developed some 
patent and some high paying jobs so we thought this was worth to keep going. There’s a 
million dollars in there for the funding of the censes program, we have the sense coming up. 
14 is the one time spending for Great Plains test site for 2 million dollars, that test site is 
number 1 in the country out of the 6 in the country. There’s a million dollars in there for grants, 
that Grant Sky, that helps them with the concrete and those types of things. Funding for 
workforce grants to tribal colleges is half million dollars, been really successful with one of 
the colleges and we want to keep that going.  
 
Chairman Delzer: The tribal college grants, how does that alien with the 500 thousand that 
went in in 2003.  
 
5:45 Representative Monson: This one is 500 thousand and there’s a requirement to report 
back to us on how they used it. This is for the tribal college to expand the work force. In 2003 
the 500 thousand was for the non-beneficiary students.    
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6:30 Representative Nathe: (continuing) Page 2 section 4, line 23, that is for operation 
intern, that was per the departments request. Page 2 line 28, 2 million to 1.6 million again 
that is for the trade office. Page 3 lines 6-7 that’s special fund money the next line from the 
bottom is general fund money and the next line moving up is the total of that.  
 
8:00 Chairman Delzer: Section 9 takes 27 million out of this time’s Indian fund balance, it 
gives an exemption so it can be carried over into the next biennium. Section 10 is the way 
we give the 27 million out, it goes through commerce. Section 11 is a study that actually to 
decide on some licensing fees and everything that way and which agency would be the best 
one to do it. Section 12 is the emergency for 9 and 10, which is the expenditure of the money.  
 
 Representative Nathe: Section 9 says funding under this section is not subject to section 
54-44.1-11, what is that?  
 
Chairman Delzer: That’s because it says it’s funded in the 2017/2019 biennium so you have 
to put that in there so they can spend it in the next biennium so you have to put that in there 
so they can spend it in the next biennium and that’s how it comes off this time’s ending fund 
balance.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Who gets the homeless shelter grants? Do we have a list of those? 
 
Levi Mr. Kinnischtzke, LC: There are several nonprofit originations throughout the state 
that receive that funding to help homeless individuals.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Did we transfer any of the existing sections from the current base bill?  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke, LC: The exceptions were for APUC, the transfer to the internship fund, 
which is now down to 855 thousand, the section regarding the trade office which is now 1.6 
million instead of 2 million. The last section of the bill was entrepreneurship grants, which 
Representative Nathe already updated. The only section that was included in the introduced 
version that is not included in the amendment in front of you is the exemption for the 
discretionary fund.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further questions by the committee?  
 
 11:35 Representative Nathe: With that I would make a motion to adopt the amendment 
19.0206.01005 
 
Representative Monson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: voice vote, all in favor, motion carries.  
 
 Representative Nathe: I will make a motion for a Do Pass as Amended 
 
Representative Monson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion on the motion? Hearing none we will call the roll.  
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A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       21       Nay:    0        Absent:   0 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Nathe will carry the bill. 
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting.  
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